
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
FIFTH SESSION 
Official Records 

THIRD COMMITfil 304th 
MEETING 

Monday, 6 November 1950, at 10.45 a.m. 

Lake Success, New York 

CONTENTS 
Page 

Draft first international covenant on human rights and measures of imple­
mentation (A/1384, AfC.3f534, AfC.3f535, E/1681 and AfC.3fL.76) 
(continued) ..............•..................................... 211 

Chairman: Mr. G. J. VAN HEUVEN GoEDHART (Netherlands). 

Draft first international covenant on human rights 
and measures of implementation (A/1384, A/ 
C.3/534, A/C.3/535, E/1681 and A/C.3/L76) 
(continued) · 

[Item 63]* 

DRAFT RESOLUTION SUBMITTED BY BRAZIL, TURKEY 
AND THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA (A/C.3/L.76) 
1. The CHAIRMAN reminded the Committee that it 
had been decided at the previous meeting that the draft 
resolution submitted jointly by the delegations of Bra­
zil, Turkey and the United States (A/C.3jL.76) would 
be taken as the basic working paper. 
2. Amendments to paragraphs 2 (a) and 2 (b) of that 
resolution had been set out in document A/C.3jL.95. 
3. It had been suggested that consideration of the pre­
amble of the joint draft resolution and the amendments 
to it should be left until action had been taken on the 
operative part. 
4. He therefore called for the vote on paragraph 1 of 
of the c:perative part of the joint draft resolution 
(A/C.3jL.76). 

That paragraph 1 was adopted by 39 votes to none, 
with no abstentions. 
5. The CHAIRMAN said that as paragraph 2, sub­
paragraph (a) did not seem to be affected by any 
amendment, he would suggest that that sub-paragraph 
and the preamble could be combined in a first part and 
the remainder of the operative part in a second part. 

It was so agreed. 
6. Mr. LEQUESNE (United Kingdom) requested 
that the vote on sub-paragraph (a) should be taken in 
two parts, the first part to end with the word "imple­
mentation". 
7. He would vote for the first part, but did not think 
that the Commission on Human Rights should be posi-

* Indicates the item number on the General Assembly agenda. 

211 

tively directed to submit the revised draft to the General 
Assembly at its sixth session. The current debate in the 
Third Committee had presented the Commission with 
a considerable number of new views for its considera­
tion and the Commission might find it impossible to 
digest them all in the short time at its disposal. There 
was a real danger that the Commission might be com­
pelled to produce a draft covenant unworthy of the 
Universal Declaration on Human Rights. Hence, he 
would vote against the last part of the sub-paragraph. 

8. Mr. CASSIN (France) warned the Committee 
against the danger of undue delay in producing at least a 
first draft covenant, limited in scope though it might 
be. To draft a covenant covering the entire ground of 
the Declaration would take years and the earlier arti­
cles would probably become outdated before the work 
was ended. 

9. He would therefore vote in favour of the second 
part of the sub-paragraph. 

10. Mrs. ROOSEVELT (United States of America) 
thought that the draft first covenant should be com­
pleted as soon as possible, as it could be a great con­
tribution to world peace. 

11. She entirely agreed with the French representa­
tive's views and would therefore vote in favour of the 
second part of the sub-paragraph. 

12. Mr. AZKOUL (Lebanon) said the Commission 
on Human Rights should not be given the impression 
that it could protract its work unduly. The wording of 
the sub-paragraph did not prejudge the right of the 
General Assembly to revise the Commission's draft if it 
found it necessary to do so. 

13. Mr. LAMBROS (Greece) requested a vote on the 
question whether the Committee wished to vote on sub­
paragraph (a) by parts. 

It was decided, by 18 votes to 16, with 15 abstentions, 
that the vote should be taken by parts. 

A/C.3/SR.304 



212 General Assembly-Fifth Session-Third Committee 

Ths first part of paragraph 2, sub-paragraph (a), 
was adopted by 52 flotes to none. 

The second part of paragraph 2, sub-paragraph (a), 
was adopted by 41 votes to 3, with 6 abstentions. 

Paragraph 2, sub-paragraph (a) of the joint draft 
,.esolution ( A/C.3/L.76) was adopted by 48 votes to 
none, with 2 abstentions. 

14. Mr. VLAHOVIC (Yugoslavia), introducing his 
amendment to sub-paragraph (b) ( A/C.3/L.92), ex­
plained that the first two paragraphs of his amendment 
were not strictly speaking a preamble, but simply re­
plies to the questions put to the General Assembly by 
the Economic and Social Council. 
15. The intention was not to draft new articles but to 
give general directives to the Commission on Human 
Rights. His amendment was self-explanatory and re­
produced the views expressed by a number of delega­
tions. 

16. He requested that the Yugoslav amendment should 
be voted on first. 
17. Mr. ROSHCHIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) said that paragraphs 1 and 2 of the amendment 
submitted by his delegation (A/C.3/L.77 /Rev.l) dealt 
with civil rights and should be inserted in paragraph 2, 
sub-paragraph (b), of the basic text, whereas paragraphs 
9, 10, and 12 of that amendment, dealing as they did with 
political rights, should form a separate sub-paragraph 
of paragraph 2. Paragraphs 1 and 2 of the USSR 
amendment were, it was true, similar in intention to the 
Yugoslav amendment-with the principle of which he 
agreed-but went a great deal further, being broader 
in scope and more precise. 

18. It was therefore further removed from the basic 
text than the Yugoslav amendment and should be voted 
on first. 

19. The CHAIRMAN suggested that the preamble of 
the Yugoslav amendment should be taken first. 
20. Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghanistan) said he did not 
see how the vote could be taken on the preamble pro­
posed by the Yugoslav delegation before the Committee 
knew what were the operative parts which would 
follow. 

21. Mr. VLAHOVIC (Yugoslavia) replied that the 
vote could certainly be taken on the first two paragraphs 
of his amendment; they were not a preamble but merely 
the reply to the question put by the Economic and 
Social Council concerning the adequacy of the first 
eighteen articles. 

22. The CHAIRMAN agreed with the Yugoslav rep­
resentative and suggested that the substitution of the 
word "considers" for the word "considering" would 
clear up the misunderstanding. 

23. Mr. AZKOUL (Lebanon) objected that that 
change would not remove the difficulty. He agreed with 
the representative of Afghanistan. 

24. His vote on the first paragraph of the Yugoslav 
amendment would depend on whether the statement of 
rights followed or not, and what those rights were. The 
second paragraph might be acceptable as a general state­
ment, as it was very similar to an amendment submitted 
by his own delegation. If, however, certain rights were 

subsequently adopted, that paragraph might become 
unacceptable. The Yugoslav delegation would suffer no 
disadvantage if the vote were taken first on the latter 
paragraphs of his amendment. 

25. Mrs. AFNAN (Iraq) thought that the vote on the 
first two paragraphs would not prejudge the vote on the 
remainder but merely register the Committee's views on 
the adequacy or inadequacy of the first eighteen articles. 

26. Mrs. ROOSEVELT (United States of America) 
suggested, in order to facilitate the work of the Com­
mittee, that the first two paragraphs of the Yugoslav 
amendment might be placed at the end of sub-paragraph 
(b) as matters for consideration by the Commission on 
Human Rights. All the points raised in that amend­
ment and the USSR amendment could then be enum­
erated after some such phrase as "including the views 
relating to the following rights". That would constitute 
a directive to the Commission and would be in accord­
ance with the task assigned to the Committee. 

27. A final consideration of the draft covenant would 
not be undertaken before the sixth session of the Gen­
eral Assembly. The Commission should be given an op­
portunity to study the documentation of the Sub-Com­
mission on Prevention of Discrimination and Protection 
of Minorities in regard to the part of the Yugoslav 
amendment dealing with minorities as well as the 
documentation of the International Law Commission 
which was to deal with the question of the right of 
asylum. 

28. Mr. ROSHCHIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) said he could not agree with the United States 
representative's suggestion, for it would lead to a 
substantive change. 

29. The General Assembly was fully empowered to 
give the Commission on Human Rights binding instruc­
tions concerning the basic ideas to be embodied in the 
draft covenant. If only vague directives were given such 
as the views expressed, the Commission still would not 
know what provisions ought to be embodied in the draft 
covenant, the debate would have to be reopened at the 
sixth session of the General Assembly and the draft 
would have to be referred once more to the Commission 
for fresh revision. It was therefore obvious why the 
Economic and Social Council had asked the General 
Assembly for basic policy decisions. 

30. Mr. VLAHOVIC (Yugoslavia) accepted the 
amendment to his amendment suggested by the Chair­
man, but maintained that it was essential that the Eco­
nomic and Social Council's question concerning the 
adequacy of the first eighteen articles should be 
answered. 

31. Mrs. ROOSEVELT (United States of America) 
said that, since the Yugoslav and USSR representatives 
had failed to accept her suggestion, she would formally 
propose the deletion of the paragraph beginning 
"Decides that ... " from the Yugoslav amendment 
(A/C.3/L.92) and the paragraph beginning ((Recom­
mends" from the USSR amendment (A/C.3/L.77 / 
Rev .1 ) and the insertion of the phrase "including the 
views relating to the following rights". 

32. Mrs. MENON (India) agreed with the numerous 
speakers who had said in the course of the general de­
bate that the first eighteen articles of the draft cov-



304th Meeting-6 November 1950 213 

enant were inadequate and that certain articles dealing 
with political rights should be included. Since that was 
clearly the majority view, it would be pointless to ask 
the Commission merely to consider the summary records 
of the Committee and to draw its own conclusions. 

33. She therefore supported the Yugoslav amend­
ment. In that connexion, she agreed that its first two 
paragraphs should begin with the word "considers". 

34. Mrs. ROOSEVELT (United States of America) 
pointed out that if the Committee accepted the USSR 
amendment, under which actual texts of articles would 
be transmitted to the Commission on Human Rights, it 
would be embarking on an improper course, since all 
texts should be considered first by the Commission, next 
by the Economic and Social Council and only then by 
the General Assembly. The Committee should give gen­
eral directives to the Commission on Human Rights, but 
should not engage in drafting texts for inclusion in the 
covenant. 

35. Mr. NORIEGA (Mexico) replied that the amend­
ments before the Committee were not final texts ; they 
simply conveyed the decision of the General Assembly 
that articles should be drafted covering the points 
listed. Since all members of the Committee were govern­
ment representatives, such action would be tantamount 
to consultation with governments, a method previously 
resorted to by the Commission on Human Rights. It 
was quite proper for the General Assembly to give a 
concrete answer to the four questions put to it by the 
Economic and Social Council, rather than merely to 
refer the Commission to the summary records of meet­
ings of the Committee. 

36. The second paragraph of the Yugoslav amendment 
did not seem to express accurately its author's idea that 
the first eighteen articles were inadequate to protect the 
rights which they defined. That idea would be more 
clearly stated if the words "the present wording of" 
were deleted. 

37. Mr. CASSIN (France) pointed out that the Com­
mission on Human Rights was expected to present a 
revised draft covenant to the General Assembly at its 
sixth session ; since it would have to revise the eighteen 
articles and also to consider articles relating to economic, 
social and cultural rights and the measures of implemen­
tation, the Commission would plainly have a great deal 
to do. If it were also instructed to include articles on all 
the points covered in the Yugoslav and USSR amend­
ments, it might find itself unable to cope with its task. 
38. In order to allow the Commission a margin of dis­
cretion, he would support the United States amendment. 

39. Mr. ROSHCHIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) was opposed to the United States amendment. 
He wished to make it clear that the United States repre­
sentative had misunderstood his intentions and that the 
USSR delegation was not proposing texts or articles. It 
was proposing certain ideas for inclusion in the covenant 
and had stated those ideas as precisely as possible ; the 
Commission would, of course, be free to draft them in 
any manner it pleased. He added that a revised text of 
his amendments (A/C.3/L.96) to the basic text would 
be circulated shortly, under which the Commission 
would be instructed to have in mind the inclusion of the 
various points listed. 

40. He fully agreed with the Mexican representative 
that the Committee would be within its rights if it 
adopted the USSR amendments. 
41. If the first two paragraphs of the Yugoslav amend­
ment, which he supported in principle, were adopted, he 
reserved the right to make certain changes in his own 
amendments. 
42. AZMI Bey (Egypt) said the Committee had 
plainly decided that the first eighteen articles were in­
adequate and that it wished to give directives to the 
Commission on Human Rights but did not wish to trans­
mit actual texts to it. 
43. All those objects could be achieved by amending 
paragraph 2, sub-paragraph (b), of the joint draft 
resolution by inserting after the words "revision of the 
draft covenant" the phrase "with a view to adding 
other rights thereto and defining the scope and limita­
tions of such rights" and by adding at the end of that 
sub-paragraph the text of the Egyptian ( A/C.3 /L.85), 
Yugoslav, USSR and other amendments.1 

44. Mr. DEMCHENKO (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist 
Republic) enquired whether the United States amend­
ment was receivable, inasmuch as the time limit for the 
submission of amendments of substance had expired. 

45. The CHAIRMAN replied that additions and de­
letions proposed in the course of a drafting discussion 
could always be entertained; the Egyptian amendment 
was of the same character. 
46. Mr. MENDEZ (Philippines) pointed out that the 
first eighteen articles of the draft covenant dealt with 
civil and personal rights, while the suggestions of the 
Yugoslav representative included an entirely different 
category-political rights. lt appeared illogical to in­
struct the Commission on Human Rights to include 
articles on certain political rights without a previous 
thorough discussion of all such rights and without first 
exhausting the list of civil rights, to which such points 
as double jeopardy, inviolability of the home and of 
private life and confiscation of private property without 
due compensation might well be added. 
47. He would be prepared to accept the first paragraph 
of the Yugoslav amendment if it were to apply solely 
to civil rights. 
48. For that reason he supported the United States 
amendment. 
49. Mr. KAY ALI (Syria) supported the Yugoslav 
amendment because it gave a definite answer to the 
question put by the Economic and Social Council con­
cerning the adequacy of the first eighteen articles. 
50. Since a clear answer was required, he was unable 
to accept the United States amendment. 
51. He agreed with the Mexican representative, how­
ever, that the second paragraph of the Yugoslav amend­
ment did not accurately reflect the idea its author must 
have had in mind. 
52. Mrs. MENON (India) enquired precisely what 
the Economic and Social Council had had in mind when 
it had referred to the General Assembly the four ques­
tions formulated in Council resolution 303 I (XI). It 

1 The amendments proposed by Egypt were subsequently 
issued as document A/C.3/L.97. 



214 General Assembly-Fifth Session-Third Committee 

was her impression that the Third Committee was ex­
pected to give precise directives to the Commi&sion, 
rather than merely transmit general views. 

53. The CHAIRMAN replied that by its resolution 
303 I (XI) the Economic and Social Council had trans­
mitted to the General Assembly the draft covenant to­
gether with all relevant documentation, so that the Gen­
eral Assembly might consider them "with a view to 
reaching policy decisions" on the four questions to which 
the Council had given particular consideration. There 
could be no doubt that the Committee had been asked 
neither for its general views nor for draft texts, but for 
clear and precise guidance on those four points. 

54. Mr. CHANG (China) thought that it might be 
helpful if the sponsors of amendments to the joint draft 
resolution could present a joint and simplified text. 

55. Mrs. ROOSEVELT (United States of America) 
said that the United States amendment would provide 
an adequate policy decision, since under it the Com­
mission on Human Rights would be asked to take into 
consideration such of the rights mentioned in the Yugo­
slav and USSR amendments as the Committee would 
agree to refer to it. 

Printed in U.S.A. 

56. Mrs. MENON (India) remarked that if some of 
the proposed amendments had the appearance of articles, 
it was only because their authors had Lleen anxious to 
make entirely clear to the Commission on Human 
Rights how the inadequacy of the first eighteen articles 
of the draft Govenant was to be remedied. 
57. She urged the Committee to eschew vague gener­
alities and to make real policy decisions. 
58. Mr. VLAHOVIC (Yugoslavia) emphasized that 
his amendment gave a very definite answer to the ques­
tion whether or not the first eighteen articles were ade­
quate; those who considered them adequate could 
simply vote against the amendment. 
59. In reply to the Philippine representative, he said 
that the Yugoslav amendment was perfectly logical if its 
first two paragraphs were considered in the light of its 
following clauses. 
60. In view of the Mexican and Syrian representa­
tives' objection to the words "the present wording of" 
in the second paragraph of the Yugoslav amendment, 
he requested that those words should be put to the vote 
separately. 

The meeting rose at 1 p.m. 

A-39450-November 1950-3,400 




